CENWW-OD-T









06 December 2011
MEMORANDUM FOR THE RECORD

SUBJECT: Ice Harbor Turbine Unit 3 Operations.

Ice Harbor operated turbine generator unit 3 without a full set of fish screens in place for approximately 11.5 hours between 5 December and 6 December.  Fish screens are required for operating turbine units until 15 December 2011.
Background: A failed rotor pole connection forced Turbine Generator Unit 3 out of service on 13 September 2011.  The installation of new windings on 2 sets of pole pieces and other repairs continued through 2 December.  During that time, routine inspections revealed torn STS mesh in slot 3A.  The mesh was repaired but the screen was not returned to the usual operating configuration in turbine unit 3.  Crews apparently assumed that turbine unit 3 would not be returned to service until after 15 December (the last day STSs are required to be in place when turbine units are operated).
On Monday, 5 December, the unit checkout was completed and turbine unit 3 returned to service at 1232 hours.  The unit was online until 2300 hours when generation demand subsided.  The unit was brought back online at 0605 hours with increased electrical demand.  Operators then realized that the STS was not in the deployed configuration and the unit was removed from service at 0700 hours.

The elapsed operating time for the unit without an STS in place was 11 hours 23 minutes.  This operating condition is not compliant with the Fish Passage Plan, Section 6, paragraph 2.3.1.2.(b). 

Fish Impacts: Juvenile bypass systems are operated until December 15 to allow the passage of fish from gatewells into the tailrace.  Few juvenile salmonids are likely present at this time.  Since adult fish counts ceased for the season on November 1, there is no current fish passage data available at Ice Harbor Dam.  Historical records indicate that few adult steelhead passed Ice Harbor Dam on December 6 over the previous 10 year period.
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